City of Geneva, Illinois
Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

301-303 West State Street

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN):

12-03-410-013

HISTORIC NAME: Johnson Block

COMMON NAME: Periman Fine Jewelry

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: Before 1869

SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: 1924, 1930 (See 10 N. Third St.)

ARCHITECT: Unknown

BUILDER: Wilson Brothers

WILSON BROTHERS: [ AUGUST [ OSCAR [1BOTH

ARCHITECTURAL DATA:

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: Two-Part Commercial Block, Late Classical

OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Simple, Back Facing Rectangle

LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

NUMBER OF STORIES: 2

[ ] significant

FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Poured Concrete

|z| Contributing

PRIMARY WALL MATERIAL(S): Brick

|:| Non-Contributing — Built After 1987

|:| Non-Contributing — Reversible Alterations

FRONT PORCH: Commercial Entry

|:| Non-Contributing — Irreversible Alterations

VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: N/A

HISTORIC DISTRICT LOCATION:

ENTRY DOOR(S):

IE Central Geneva NRHD

WINDOW MATERIAL: Aluminum; Wood Plate

|:| North Geneva NRHD

WINDOW STYLE: Fixed, picture; Double Hung, 8/1

|E| Local Geneva HD

PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Flat

|:| Not in HD / Individual Historic Landmark

PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Unknown

NR DISTRICT SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

VISIBLE CHIMNEY: No

|E| Contributing

|:| Non-Contributing

CHIMNEY MATERIAL: N/A

|:| Not Applicable / Not in NR District

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:

HPC ACTION:

|:| Demolition Approved:

Other HPC Action: 8 20.19 Windows:; 10.19.23
Awning Sign




City of Geneva, Illinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

ADDITIONAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

301-303 West State Street

BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION:

A building has existed at this site as early as 1869, where it is visible
on the Bird's Eye map of Geneva as a narrow hipped-roof building,
with two attached buildings on the rear, the same height but each
with gables facing front to Third Street. On the State Street facade an
enclosed single story porch or entryway is also visible.

The complex plan of this building is also visible in historic Sanborn
Fire Insurance maps, beginning in 1885. At this point, the general
structure appears to reflect the Bird's Eye, with additional detail
depicting stairs on the west side of the hipped-roof section and to the
north of both gable-roofed sections. Additionally, a series of irregular
additions were added to the rear of the northernmost section. A
general store takes up the two southern buildings, with a warehouse
behind.

By 1891, the additions on the northernmost section were more
regulated, and a new addition on the rear of the southern gabled

SOURCES:

GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869
Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land
Records; Geneva, lllinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, lllinois: 150
LReminders of 150 Years: Wilson Brathers - Contractors & Builders1905-1931 by

CONTRIBUTING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:

AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

CONTRIBUTING LANDSCAPE FEATURES:

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

1999
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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: A building has existed at this site as early as 1869, where it is visible on the Bird's Eye map of Geneva as a narrow hipped-roof building, with two attached buildings on the rear, the same height but each with gables facing front to Third Street. On the State Street facade an enclosed single story porch or entryway is also visible.

The complex plan of this building is also visible in historic Sanborn Fire Insurance maps, beginning in 1885. At this point, the general structure appears to reflect the Bird's Eye, with additional detail depicting stairs on the west side of the hipped-roof section and to the north of both gable-roofed sections. Additionally, a series of irregular additions were added to the rear of the northernmost section. A general store takes up the two southern buildings, with a warehouse behind.

By 1891, the additions on the northernmost section were more regulated, and a new addition on the rear of the southern gabled section acted as a dwelling. The general store's use continued and the warehouse became a store. The form continued in 1897 with the removal of the stairs between the different sections. The use was labeled "Groceries, Dry Goods, & Shoes", with no dwelling use. In 1905 the store sold groceries with meat in the rear. By 1912, the rest of the block was filled in, creating adjoining walls, and the store sold groceries and meat with the rear vacant. By 1923, the additions were removed, with a store in the front and a cleaning and tailor shop in the rear.

The Wilson Brothers' remodeling project for George W. Johnson’s new drug store and soda fountain in 1924 involved significant structural changes. These included moving the east wall of the building to align with the public sidewalk, redesigning the street facades, and fully renovating the interior. The remodeling began on May 1, 1924, and was nearing completion by November 1, 1924.

A notable aspect of the renovation was the contract awarded to G. Karlzen & Co., a local monument dealer, to provide the granite for the building's facades. This granite, Minnesota Pearl Pink, was chosen for the State and Third street fronts of the building. These would be the first granite fronts of their kind in the Fox River Valley towns, adding an attractive and durable touch to the structure. The project was reported on June 20, 1924, highlighting its unique and substantial design.

In 1930, the map aligns with the 1924 renovation, including the removal of the western stair. It is pictured as a drug store with an additional store in the rear. This use and general form continue through 1945. Filbert's Drug Store moved from the address to 301 W State Street in 1973. The building continues to be commercial today.

This property contributes to the historic district as an early commercial building and as an example of the decorative architectural evolution of the area, exemplified by the granite street fronts.
	SOURCES: GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869 Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land Records; Geneva, Illinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, Illinois: 150 Reminders of 150 Years; Wilson Brothers - Contractors & Builders, 1905-1931 by Donald Wilson (2002)
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	PROPERTY ADDRESS: 301-303 West State Street
	SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: 1924, 1930 (See 10 N. Third St.)
	ARCHITECT: Unknown
	DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: Before 1869
	COMMON NAME: Perlman Fine Jewelry
	GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION: Johnson Block
	ARCHITECTURAL DATA: Two-Part Commercial Block, Late Classical Revival
	OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Simple, Back Facing Rectangle
	NUMBER OF STORIES: 2
	FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Poured Concrete
	PRIMARY WALL MATERIALS: Brick
	FRONT PORCH: Commercial Entry
	VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: N/A
	ENTRY DOORS: 
	WINDOW MATERIAL: Aluminum; Wood Plate
	WINDOW STYLE: Fixed, picture; Double Hung, 8/1
	PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Flat
	PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Unknown
	VISIBLE CHIMNEY: No
	CHIMNEY MATERIAL: N/A
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